
Oberlin City Council meeting 

5:00 pm 

May 10, 2018 



 

 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING – April 19, 2018 - GATEWAY- 5:00 p.m.  

 

CALL TO ORDER – President Brandon Oien called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm and the Pledge of 

Allegiance to the Flag was recited.  

 

Roll Call of the Members of the City Council – Brandon Oien, Scott Gawith, Deb Lohoefener, Jim 

Garner and Jim Marchello by phone conference. Majority of the Body Present. 

 

Absent: Mayor Ladd Wendelin and City Attorney Steve Hirsch 

 

Others Present: City Administrator Halley Roberson, City Foreman David Sporn, Police Chief Brad 

Burmaster, Treasurer Steve Zodrow, Water Supervisor Willard Perrin, Faith Meitl with the Oberlin 

Herald, Brice Meitl, Ruth Miesner, Marilyn Black, Troy & Amy Haas, Heather McDougal, Dog Park 

Committee members: Cemetery/Parks Manager Jeremy Tally, Johanna Mason, Susan Nelson and Penny 

Fringer; Swim Team Club member Shannon Addleman; EDC committee members: Director Shayla 

Williby, John Sater, Danielle Wasson and Mark Starr; Park Committee members: Kandi Ketterl, Deb 

Klima and Valisha Raile; and City Clerk Sandy Rush.  

 

Lohoefener moved second by Gawith to approve councilman Oien preside over the meeting as Acting 

Mayor. Motion carried. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Kandi Ketterl with the Parks committee asked for a letter of approval from the 

council to apply for a grant from the GROW foundation. It would be for $500 to fund meals at the park 

for volunteers during the construction of the new playground equipment. Ms. Ketterl told the council the 

equipment is to be delivered May 9 and the plans call for ideally twenty workers to work 4-5 days on the 

installation. Roberson indicated the city crew would require many volunteers to accomplish the task. For 

this reason, Ketterl explained the committee would be advertising for bids locally to do the work and 

applying for a Hansen grant to fund it. She asked if there was money in the budget to help with the 

process. After a discussion, Lohoefener moved, second by Gawith to approve the applications for a 

GROW grant and to fund the project with $5000 as budgeted. Motion carried. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA  

Approval of minutes – for April 5, 2018 regular Council meeting. 

Appropriation Ordinance - Payment of Bills.  

Lohoefener moved, second by Gawith, to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion carried. 

 

OLD BUSINESS  
 

EDC Appropriation – Marchello discussed his desire to cease funding the EDC until the city’s expectations are 

met. Oien proposed the city do an analysis on EDC during the budget discussion but to pay the quarterly 

appropriation at this time. Gawith reminded all to remember the secondary benefits of the businesses that were 

already here and assisted by EDC. Lohoefener disagreed with the perception of what EDC was or was not 

accomplishing.  After a long discussion, Lohoefener moved, second by Gawith to pay the full amount of the 

quarterly appropriation. Motion carried. 

 

New Business 
 

Swim Team Meet – Shannon Addleman with the Oberlin Swim Club requested the council to consider closing 

the pool June 16
th

 so they can host a meet. Lohoefener moved, second by Garner to approve. Motion carried. 



 

 

Dog Park – Jeremy Tally presented a summary of the dog park survey results showing a positive interest in a dog 

park. The top two concerns were discussed and they were diseases and neighborhood. Tally is seeking the approval 

of the council to continue with the grant application. Garner moved, second by Gawith to approve. Motion carried. 

 

Pool Pricing and Opening Date – Administrator Roberson asked the council to review the proposed Pool Brochure 

showing hours, rules and prices for 2018. All agreed, no changes needed to be made. 

 

REPORTS 

 
 Acting Mayor Oien remarked he felt the council owed the citizens an analysis of the EDC. 

 Administrators Report 

o Next Council Meeting is to be May 3, 2018 but several would be gone that week to a KMU meeting in 

Wichita. She requests the council consider different days in May for the meeting. Lohoefener moved, 

second by Gawith to change the next two meetings to May 10 and May 24. Motion carried. 

o 2018 KMIT Assessment results showed the city receiving a Gold Star for their Worker’s Compensation 

Package which awards a five percent discount on the annual premiums.  

o Alternative Housing – Roberson was asked permission by a citizen to build in a zone that does not allow 

for alternative housing. All agreed to have the administrator discuss it with the planning and zoning 

committees to come up with a plan to allow such homes. 

o Events Update – The MMA promotor has once again scheduled an event at the Gateway for Saturday, 

October 13, 2018. 

o Cattle Expo – The Strategic Doing Group is helping to organize local businesses, veterinaries and 

producers to launch a cattle exposition, to be held at the Gateway. This is scheduled for December 4
th

 and 

5
th

. 

 Public Works Department 

o Report Available for Discussion 

o Water Main Information was presented for the recommendations proposed for water main projects to be 

done in the future if a CDBG grant were to be awarded. 

 Treasurers Report 

o March Cash Flow Statement Available for Discussion. A new fund for the ticket sales has been created; 

Gateway Events. 

o Sewer rates have been calculated with the median rate staying approximately the same this year at $17.58. 

 Police Report 

o March 2018 Police Report attached. 

 Board Reports 

o Chamber Report attached. 

o EDC Report: Shayla’s Accomplishments, Minutes & Revised Bylaws attached. 

 Other Reports 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

At 6:20 pm Gawith moved, second by Lohoefener to adjourn. Motion carried. 

 

______________________________________  ___________________________________ 

Sandy Rush, City Clerk    Brandon Oien, Acting Mayor 

 



 
AGENDA  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Gateway 1 & 2 – Oberlin, Kansas 

May 10, 2018 
5:00 PM 

 
Meeting Called to Order – Mayor Ladd Wendelin 
 
ROLL CALL of the Members of the City Council and determination of quorum. 
Oien____ Marchello _____ Lohoefener____ Garner _____ Gawith ____ 
 
ABSENT – Brandon Oien 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE to the Flag 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 Oral Communications from the Audience   
 

CONSENT AGENDA: Discussion and possible action by motion to approve the following items 
and or reports: 

 Approval of minutes of previous meetings 

 Appropriation Ordinance (Payment of Bills) 
Motion_______________ Second_______________ 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
  
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Western Kansas Child Advocacy- Vicki Hubin 
2. Street Repair Options 

 
EXECUTIVE Sessions 

1. Executive Session on matters deemed privileged in attorney-client relationship. (Hirsch) 
 
REPORTS OF OTHER OFFICERS, BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 
 

 Mayors Report  

 Administrators Report 
o Next Council Meeting May 24, 2018 
o CVB Update 
o Pool Update 
o Sappa Park Update 
o City Wide Cleanup  
o Silent Auction Reminder 
o Energy Study Update 

 

 Public Works Department 
o Report Available for Discussion 

 Treasurers Report 
o Cash Flow Statement Available for Discussion 

 Police Report 
o Report Available for Discussion 
o Two New Officers 

 Board Reports 
o Library April Minutes 

 Other Reports 
 

 



ADJOURNMENT 

 Action – Motion to Adjourn 
  Motion_______________ Second_______________ 



Traditional Street Construction 



Ideal Street Construction 

Full coverage 

concrete 



Hybrid Street Construction 

Extended concrete 

Asphalt 



Traditional Street Construction 

Traditional Street Construction: 

•  Provides for drainage 

•  Uses cost effective asphalt  

•  Easy access for repairs &      

maintenance 

•  Specific to Oberlin numerous 

repairs  with chip sealing has caused 

excessive road crowning and 

drainage blockage 

 



Ideal Street Construction 

Full coverage 

concrete 

Ideal Street Construction 

•  Most durable street 

•  Best drainage 

•  Most expensive option for 

street construction or repair 

•  Difficult and costly for repair 

•  Fewer repairs needed 

•  Costly if any infrastructure 

work is needed below the 

street surface  



Hybrid Street Construction 

Extended 

concrete 

Asphalt 
Hybrid Street Construction 

•  Specific to Oberlin – it is pro-active 

to maintain accessible and functional 

gutters for drainage – excessive street 

repair with chip seal has created large 

lip and road drop off making it 

necessary to ‘reclaim’  gutters  

•  Improved drainage, and improved 

road life longevity  

•  Reduced wear-and-tear on street 

sweeper 

•  Hybrid street construction can be 

completed in-house 

 



        Street improvement options 



        Suggested street projects 

Suggested street projects 

East from Adams at Elm (Not the intersection) 

Ash off Elk to Hwy  Ash to Hwy to Beaver (this connects 2 previous street projects) 

W. on Hall at Waldo 

East south of commercial to Mill (new main) 

Grand from Commercial at Ash (new main) 



Street Improvement Options 2018 

 

1 By City Foreman David Sporn 

 

There are near 57 bituminous and asphalt east and west blocks 

There are near 56 bituminous and asphalt north and south blocks  

NOT all streets need the edges replaced 

All prices listed are approximate 

 

Chip Seal 

Done by a contractor-All of town=$617,771  Each block=$5467 

NOTES: This is all inclusive except the road preparation. The prep would be done by our crew and would 

consist primarily of crack sealing and pothole repair. 

Done ourselves – All of town=$507,500  Each block=$4491 

1. Chip Seal= approx. $2.50 sq. yd. 

2. Each block of roadways is approx.  1562 sq. yds.   

3. 1562x2.50= $3905 (approx. $4000) 

Equipment and Materials needed 

A. Roller $25,000 

B. Oiler $15,500 

C. Rock chips, 25 lbs sq yd, 39,050 lbs per block 

D. Oil, .30 gallons per square yard, 468.6 gallons per block 

E. Chip spreader $15,000 

Downfalls 

a. Road edges will still be high and continue to deteriorate 

b. Prime time for this is between May 1 and August 31 (busy season) 

c. No structural value 

d. No leveling value 

e. Large upfront expense for the needed equipment  

Positives 

a. Water-seals the roadway to prolong life 

 

NOTES: While chip sealing may reduce water from entering under the roadway, it has no value for 

structural support or pothole prevention. Prior to this type of treatment the street needs to be crack-



Street Improvement Options 2018 

 

2 By City Foreman David Sporn 

 

sealed and the blemishes need to be repaired. This is an option primarily for maintenance to prolong the 

life of an already structurally sound street.   

 

 

Asphalt edge repair option #1 

Done by Contractor – All of town=$1,291,251  Each block=$11427 

NOTES: This price is for the installation of the new asphalt by a contractor and our crew would do the 

tear out and preparation. For Prep work, we will still need a packer and a saw for a total of $39,000. The 

additional equipment will come to $350 for each block, the contracted work is $11077 for each block. 

Done ourselves – All of town=$987,281  Each block=$8737 

1. Asphalt= approx. $78.50 per ton 

2. 5’ x 380’ x 6”= 45.9 tons (one side of street) 

3. Repave on both sides of a street is approx. $7206 

Equipment and Materials needed 

A. Packer $35,000 

B. Saw $4000 

C. Pavement Roller $16,000 

D. Paver $118,000 

Downfalls 

a. Expensive additional equipment needed upfront 

b. Time sensitive 

c. Training needed 

d. Extra summer help needed 

Positives 

a. Long lasting 

b. Can be driven on soon after laid 

 

NOTES: This seemed to be a good idea for a repair of the street edges. The concerns I have here are the 

additional equipment purchases and the personnel it will take to operate them. This project would 

consist of us tearing out and preparing the existing edge (approx. 5’ for the length of the street). When 

ready to proceed, we would have to get the paving equipment and start laying asphalt. There would be 



Street Improvement Options 2018 

 

3 By City Foreman David Sporn 

 

several pieces of equipment out at this time which will require operators.  The entire group of operators 

will need to be trained for a successful job. When all road edges in town have been repaired, we would 

end up with the paving equipment which would no longer be needed and would likely need to be sold. 

Asphalt edge repair option #2 

Done by a contractor – All of town=$1,898,400  Each block=$16,800 

1. Mill off 3” while bringing the road edge back to gutter level 

2. Total width would be 11’ 

3. $8400 per street side 

NOTES: This option came after I spoke to a contractor. He said this is what they are doing in their town. 

This seems like a good repair and would have less of a pitch from the center of the street. The company 

would do all this work so training and extra personnel would not be needed. This option would also 

generate millings. This would be the highest dollar option. 

 

Concrete edge repair (concrete price has increased considerably)  

Done ourselves - All of town=$1,201,868  Each block=$10,636 

1. Concrete= $125.50 cubic yard 

2. 5’ x 380’ x 7”= 41 cubic yards (one side of street) 

3. Concrete on both sides of street is approx. $10,291 

Equipment and Materials needed 

A. Packer $35,000 

B. Saw $4000 

Downfalls 

a. 10 day dry period before put back in service 

b. Odd appearance to the road 

 

 

 

Positives 

a. Local material and business 



Street Improvement Options 2018 

 

4 By City Foreman David Sporn 

 

b. Longest lasting 

c. Not much additional equipment is needed 

d. Training not needed 

NOTES: This option appears to be the best to me. The money spent could stay in town. There is a 

minimal amount of extras needed. This project would consist of us tearing out and preparing the 

existing edge (approx. 5’ for the length of the street) and then having concrete poured. Concrete seems 

to last the longest although it may be slightly more difficult to get to utilities beneath if needed. After 

poured we would go back and seal the edges with our crack sealer. There would be no additional 

personnel or training needed. The streets may have an odd appearance with the contrasting colors of 

the black center and the concrete edges. 

 

 

 

 

CONCLUSION: I set out to make a crack sealing project for our street crew for the fall months and was struck by 

the poor condition of the streets.  Most of them are so bad that they are beyond this type of maintenance.  We 

have six blocks that can be crack sealed and 107 blocks that need another type of treatment.  That is when I 

began looking for other options suitable for Oberlin.  If something isn’t done soon, I fear the worst.  Once streets 

become this bad, water gets beneath them and they deteriorate very quickly. Several years ago we used a chip 

sealing program which has kept the streets OK for a long time, but has also contributed to the destruction and 

increased height of the edges.  After we stopped chip sealing, the water started to enter the base of the streets.  

As time has went on, the neglect has multiplied itself to our troubles we have today. Not all of these streets 

need to have the edges rebuilt.  There are many that can be improved with chip seal, but our main concerns are 

the ones needing to be rebuilt.  These streets will continue to deteriorate faster and faster until something is 

done.   

The middle of our streets appear to be in fair condition, with a majority of issues along the edges.  I believe the 

most cost effective way to prolong street life would be to repair the edges and seal the middles with our crack 

sealer. This would greatly extend the life of our streets and ease the usage of our street sweeper, while being 

able to effectively clean gutters.   

In conclusion, I believe with a little money set aside each year for some of these projects, and by starting to 

improve the worst streets first, we will end of up with decent, long lasting and cosmetically appealing streets of 

Oberlin for years to come. 



Street Improvement Options 2018 

 

5 By City Foreman David Sporn 

 

 

 



Street Improvement Options 2018 

 

6 By City Foreman David Sporn 

 

   

 



Oberlin Convention and Visitors Bureau (CVB) 

 Mission 

Foster a diverse tourism industry for the economic growth of Oberlin. 

Initiatives 

 Financially partner with organizations or individuals hosting events geared toward bringing people 
to Oberlin 

 Bring quality events to Oberlin 

 Design and distribute quality marketing material to attract people to Oberlin 
 

Proposed budget 
 

Percentage Budget Item Projected Dollar Amount 

5% Photographers $1,250 

65% Events/Grants $16,250 

25% Advertising $6,250 

5% Memberships $1,250 

Estimated annual budget $25,000 

Process 
 

 CVB will operate as an advisory board, and assist with the effort of designing annual marketing 
campaigns, strategies, and event specific marketing projects with the administrator for 
recommendation to the city council.  

 CVB already has a grant application process already in place to assist organizations sponsoring 
events and it is recommended this remain.  

 The gap – with CVB being entirely volunteer supported and meeting once a month there is a gap 
of services; simply a logistical obstacle to make decisions fast enough to meet marketing needs of 
Oberlin. Please read further under methodology for a recommendation on how to overcome this 
gap. 

 

Replenishment 
 
Any organization receiving $1,000 or more from CVB for an event is with the expectation that after 
the event 75% of the CVB funds be returned from event proceeds. This ensures an event budget is 
always available, and to reduce any lull in tourism revenue. This can be handled on a case-by-case 
basis, but is primarily designed for large events. Replenishment provides the opportunity of profits to 
remain with the entity managing the event, without depleting CVB funds. 

 



Page 2 

Methodology 
 
Initiatives 
   
All of the initiatives directly drive the mission, in order to maximize tourism dollars. These efforts are best 
focused to attract people to Oberlin so they spend the night; this drives the idea of quality behind everything 
CVB sponsors. Over-night stays increase revenue potential throughout Oberlin. Additionally, over-night stays 
increases the CVB budget through bed-tax revenue. The long-term impact is to expose more people to Oberlin, 
making Oberlin a consideration of where people live and conduct business. 

 

Budget 
 
This budget proposal is similar to the one already submitted and approved by council. The difference is there 
was a line item for graphic design. This line item was folded into the line item of events and advertising. 
Typically, graphic design will occur when either an event or advertising is taken place and seems more 
seamless with this task being incorporated with events and advertising. Additionally, the line item for 
advertising is decreased from 30% - 25%. The reasoning for this is to capture actual advertising costs for 
Oberlin. It is anticipated with the grant initiative designed by CVB, a significant portion of grants will go toward 
advertising as well. The idea behind Oberlin advertising is to market Oberlin ‘institutions’, such as but not 
limited to; Sappa Park, the Museum, movie theater (especially when a 3D movie is available), the Fair, the 
Gateway and Golden Age.  By incorporating this focus CVB’s initiative of directing funds directly to Sappa Park, 
the movie theater and the museum will be met and hopefully exceeded. 

 

Process 
 
The process and the concepts the CVB has implemented are founded in the best of intentions for the 
City of Oberlin. The effectiveness of these initiatives has yet to be fully understood, but are incredibly 
encouraging and a path the council will hopefully continue to support. CVB already has a strong 
network of photographers, and a solid understanding of what memberships garnish the largest 
results. The thought is keeping these tasks with the CVB will help expedite, improve, and reduce 
workload for the City.  
 
The gap is caused by a lack of resources. It is common for CVB’s to have full-time staff members, and 
have the board function as clearing house, or think tank. Oberlin is not in this position, at least not 
yet. This is an increase of workload for Oberlin staff; primarily the administrator. The suggestion is for 
the administrator to be able to conduct what has been assigned CVB board business in the past. In 
the eyes of the state, the CVB funds are the same as Oberlin’s general funds. Laying this groundwork 
now will help define the role of marketing/project manager staff member and how that position can 
move among different Oberlin ‘institutions’ and event planning entities for overall betterment of 
Oberlin. And why the concept of replenishment is important. Policy assigns the administrator with a 
$10,000 spending authority. It is recommended for CVB funds there be an understanding of anything 
over $5,000 for CVB funds would require council approval. This will eliminate the need to bring the 
smaller grant requests to the council, overcome the gap in services, and generate more tourism 
revenue for Oberlin. In the spirit of working together, to create a seamless relationship, it is 
imperative the administrator communicate any expenditure with the CVB. The intent is to have CVB 
and the City working together toward the same goal laid out in the mission statement.  
 







































To: Mayor and Oberlin City Council 

From: City Foreman David Sporn 

1. The Curb Cleanup was successful. We used 2 Front loaders, 3 dump trucks, 2 trucks and trailers, 

one pickup and 10 employees to complete this project in ¾ of a day. There was 46 participants 

and items ranged from a small limb pile to riding mowers and the item most picked up this year 

was the same as last year, old TV’s.  

2. Dalton, Halley, Steve Z., and I attended the KMU conference in Wichita last week. There is an 

abundance of knowledge in utilities that gets transferred at this meeting. I spoke to many 

people about their power plants and had with many conversations involving municipal services. 

The class that left the most impact with me was titled “Distributive Generation”. It was a class 

about renewable power and the laws involved with it, along with the future preparation of it. 

3. Alumni weekend and pool opening is just around the corner. This is the most critical city event 

involving cleanliness and upkeep. Many people come back for this weekend and expect Oberlin 

to be in tip top shape. As we are aware of this we devote the time needed for preparation.  

4. This time last year we were recovering from a massive town crippling snow fall which occurred 

on April 30th. The town came together and we all pushed until we were least functional. Oberlin 

had to replace 83 power poles and ran solely on our Power Plant for 8 days. We won’t forget the 

help that quickly arrived to get us back in order and power restored. 

5. Oberlin gets paid credit for having electrical capacity that can be claimed by one of our elect. 

providers, according to our current contract with Sunflower. This is because we have a power 

plant. It also means they can call us at any time and we have to start our engines and provide 

power. This is a problem because we don’t have a Power Plant crew and I’ve been trying to 

preserve our plant for Oberlin’s needs, also I am not convinced that we can generate legally 

unless Oberlin has an emergency. This is a situation that needs to be corrected. I have been 

preparing and gathering info on this matter for several months. As soon as I find the best 

solution and options, I will notify the Mayor and Council. We receive approx. $1,900 a month 

due to the claimed elect. capacity of our generators. 

6. Water Usage:  

 

CITY OF OBERLIN, FOREMAN REPORT 
May 7, 2018 

0 

100,000 

200,000 

300,000 

400,000 

500,000 

600,000 

Water Usage in Gallons per  
day 





2018 Board Meeting Notes for Month of April  

Attending:   Dave Olson Vicky Ray     Ruth Wolfram  Ronda Schroer             Matt Barnes  

Violet Shaw Linda Dixon Sharyn Bodfield  Guest: Gordon Pettibone, Chair of Friends of Oberlin Library 

 
Minutes from previous month approval:   Financial Statement Approval:    
 Motioned by: Matt                  Motioned by:  Vicky 
 Seconded by: Sharyn                  Seconded by: Violet 
 Passed or Opposed:    Passes    Passed or Opposed:  Passes 
 
Donations:  
 $3000 from the City of Oberlin for operation expenses 
 $227.20 from FoOLs for the Summer Reading program, Story Hour and after school program. A grant  
 also helps with the summer program.  
 $50.00 from FoOLs to pay for a free class for 5 patrons. 
 $40.00 from Amanda Coryell for kids painting class room rental. 
Personnel:  
 No report. 
Facility and Maintenance: 
 Received desks for the youth space in the basement. They will need to be assembled. Ronda will call when  
 they are ready for them. 
 Davis Flooring will order flooring this month. It is carpet and vinyl. We are paying half down and other half upon  
 completion. This money was in the grant. 
 NWKLS started painting this week on the walls and lobby. They will return next week. The shelves on the walls  
 will remain as they are permanently fixed to the walls. 
Financials: 

Sherry Bergling has completed April financials and reconciliation and checks are ready to be signed. Dave and 
Vicky took care of signing this month’s checks. 

 
Miscellaneous: 
 Trustee training was held before the board meeting. Megan Zamperini discussed the role of the Library board 
 and the Friends of the Oberlin Library. She had a Kansas Public Library Trustee Manual for each board member 
 and a note card on each function (see attached). She explained the functions and answered questions. In  
 summary: the Library board is the legal authority. No single person has any power and no contact with the  
 Library staff. The board hires the director and the director deals with staff. The board asks as an advisor to the 
 Library director. The main functions of the board are policy, personnel (director), planning and budget. The  
 Friends of the library are fund raisers for the library and then are to give it to the library. These are independent 
 of each other. Communication is important between the groups. More information on friends can be found at  
 The Friends of Kansas Libraries site.  
 
 Elections were held. Nominations: Matt Barnes for President, Linda Dixon for Vice-President, Vicky Ray  

for Treasurer and Ruth Wolfram for Secretary. A unanimous ballot was cast. Officers will start at the next 
meeting. 

 
 

 Violet motioned for adjournment and Sharyn seconded. Meeting was adjourned.  
  
Next meeting is May 21, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. (Note time change for this meeting) 



May 2018 (Central  Time)Gateway

2 9 3 0 1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 1 0 1 1 1 2

1 3 1 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 8 1 9

2 0 2 1 2 2 2 3 2 4 2 5 2 6

2 7 2 8 2 9 3 0 3 1 1 2

Smith Family 
Auction, Arena

Smith Family 
Auction, Arena
1 2 p m -  Rotary 
Rooms 1 & 2 
@ Room 1 & 
2

Smith Family 
Auction, Arena

Smith Family 
Auction, Arena

Smith Family 
Auction, Arena

Smith Family 
Auction, Arena

1 2 p m -  Rotary 
Rooms 1 & 2 
@ Room 1 & 
2

1 2 p m -  Townsend 
Scholarship, 
Rooms 1 & 2

Council Rooms 1 & 2 3 : 3 0 p m -  Graduation 
reception,  
Arena 
Kitchen

1 2 p m -  Rotary 
Rooms 1 & 2 
@ Room 1 & 
2

9 a m -  Safety  
Meet ing ,  
Room 35 p m -  Metcal f  
Recital,  
Theater

1 2 p m -  Gisick 
Wedding 
Setup,  Arena

1 0 a m -  Gisick 
Wedding 
Reception, 
Arena

Gisick Wedding 
Reception, Arena

1 2 p m -  Rotary 
Rooms 1 & 2 
@ Room 1 & 
2

Council Rooms 1 & 2 Class of 68 @ Rooms 
1  and 2

Richardson Reunion, 
Rooms 1 & 2

1 2 p m -  Rotary 
Rooms 1 & 2 
@ Room 1 & 
2

Sun M o n T u e W e d Thu Fr i S a t


